**1. NAME**

**COMMON:**
Monroe City Hall

**AND/OR HISTORIC:**

---

**2. LOCATION**

**STREET AND NUMBER:**
102 West Jefferson Street

**CITY OR TOWN:**
Monroe (Eighth Congressional District)

**STATE:**
North Carolina

**3. CLASSIFICATION**

<table>
<thead>
<tr>
<th>CATEGORY (Check One)</th>
<th>OWNERSHIP</th>
<th>STATUS</th>
<th>ACCESSIBLE TO THE PUBLIC</th>
</tr>
</thead>
<tbody>
<tr>
<td>District ✗</td>
<td>Building ❑</td>
<td>Public Acquisition:</td>
<td>Occupied ☑</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>Site ❑</td>
<td>Structure ✗</td>
<td>In Process ☑</td>
<td>Unoccupied ☑</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>Object ☑</td>
<td>Public ☑ Private ☑ Both ☑ Being Considered ☑</td>
<td>Preservation work in progress ☑</td>
<td></td>
</tr>
</tbody>
</table>

**PRESENT USE (Check One or More as Appropriate):**
- Agricultural ❑
- Commercial ❑
- Educational ❑
- Entertainment ❑
- Government ❑
- Industrial ❑
- Military ☑
- Private Residence ☑
- Religious ☑
- Scientific ☑
- Transportation ☑ Other (Specify) ☑
- Comments ☑

---

**4. OWNER OF PROPERTY**

**OWNER'S NAME:**
City of Monroe

**STREET AND NUMBER:**
102 West Jefferson Street

**CITY OR TOWN:**
Monroe

**STATE:**
North Carolina

**5. LOCATION OF LEGAL DESCRIPTION**

**COURTHOUSE, REGISTRY OF DEEDS, ETC.:**
Union County Courthouse

**STREET AND NUMBER:**

**CITY OR TOWN:**
Monroe

**STATE:**
North Carolina

**6. REPRESENTATION IN EXISTING SURVEYS**

**TITLE OF SURVEY:**

**DATE OF SURVEY:**

| ❑ Federal | State | County | Local |

**DEPOSITORY FOR SURVEY RECORDS:**

**STREET AND NUMBER:**

**CITY OR TOWN:**

**STATE:**

**CODE:**
The Monroe City Hall, a three-story building of brick laid in Flemish bond, has a gable roof and interior end chimneys. The front (south) facade is three bays wide with a slightly projecting one-bay pedimented center pavilion. The pediment is formed by a fine brick cornice which carries around the entire building. Each bay on the ground level contains an entrance. The west entrance is surmounted by a large single-pane transom; the central entrance features sidelights as well as a transom; the east entrance is contained in a large segmental arch which, considerably wider than the other entrances, may have been designed to accommodate a vehicle. The windows at the second and third levels have stone sills and molded architraves with plain cornerblocks. Each contains modern two-over-two sash. There is slight but effective diminution of fenestration.

The east and west ends are pedimented also. A two-story twentieth century wing has enclosed all but the top story of the west side. The three-bay rear facade originally had three entrances on the ground level. The central doorway and the east window on the second level have been bricked up, and a two-story brick addition has been made to the west bay. The windows lighting the third story contain the early six-over-six sash.

On the interior, the City Hall presents a center-hall plan two rooms deep. A closed string stair with a molded rail and square newel rises from the east side of the hall. Some twentieth century alterations have been made including a toilet at the rear of the hall. All the mantels in the first story have been removed and the fireplace openings plastered over. The rooms are quite plain with plaster walls above heavy baseboards. The doors have roomed architraves with plain cornerblocks. The second floor, similar in plan to the first, was formerly used as the sheriff's living quarters. It features slightly more elaborate trim than the first floor. The windows in the hall are framed by paneled surrounds with cornerblocks adorned with roundels. In the southwest room is the only remaining mantel in the building. It is of conventional Greek Revival design with heavy fluted pilasters supporting a flat-panel frieze and end blocks with a Greek key motif. An enclosed stair, which rises from the second floor hall through the east room to the third floor, appears to be a replacement for an earlier stair. The third floor, which originally served as the jail, contains little of its original finish.
STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The Monroe City Hall, begun in 1847 and completed in 1848, was originally built as the public jail. The old jail it replaced is reported to have been a log structure which stood on Beasley Street. The January, 1847, term of Union County Court of Pleas and Quarter Sessions ordered "that David A. Covington, Aaron Little, Robert G. Howard and Eli Stewart with William Hamilton be appointed commissioners" to draw up plans for a public jail to be located in Union County.

When the court met again in April, 1847, it was decided "that the large fine imposed upon John Medlin at the Superior Court in Cabarrus County in February last be set apart and appropriated for the building of a public jail for the County of Union."

John Medlin and his son-in-law, Clement B. Curlee, had been charged with the murder of a runaway slave belonging to Medlin. Because feelings were running high in Union County, the case was tried in Cabarrus County. Curlee was found innocent, but Medlin was found guilty of "felony and manslaughter." To avoid the death penalty, Medlin pleaded and was adjudged to be "entitled to the benefit of his clergy." (Benefit of clergy, which under English common law protected the clergy from capital punishment, was extended in some cases to any convicted person who could read. It was abolished in Federal courts in 1790 and in North Carolina in 1855.) Medlin was fined $3,000 and ordered to pay the court costs which were $390.37.

With a large part of the money needed for the building thus provided, the court further instructed the committee to find a contractor who would agree to erect the building according to the plans submitted by the committee for $6,500.

The building, constructed on the north side of the public square, served as Union County's jail until a new one was built in 1892. The old jail was put up for public auction on January 2, 1893, with A. M. Crowell submitting the high bid of $2,825. But since Crowell was unable to comply with the terms of his bid, the building was sold to the town of Monroe for $2,880.80. The building has been used to house Monroe city government since 1893.

The Monroe City Hall, possibly the oldest building in Monroe, is interesting architecturally as well as historically. A fine example of North Carolina antebellum civic architecture, it has been used continuously as a public building since its construction.
**GEORGRAPHICAL DATA**

<table>
<thead>
<tr>
<th>Corner</th>
<th>Latitude</th>
<th>Longitude</th>
</tr>
</thead>
<tbody>
<tr>
<td>NW</td>
<td>34° 58' 56&quot;</td>
<td>80° 33' 01&quot;</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>NE</td>
<td></td>
<td></td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>SE</td>
<td></td>
<td></td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>SW</td>
<td></td>
<td></td>
</tr>
</tbody>
</table>

**APPORXIMATE ACREAGE OF NOMINATED PROPERTY:** 5.5 Acres

**STATE AND COUNTY DATA**

<table>
<thead>
<tr>
<th>State</th>
<th>Code</th>
<th>County</th>
<th>Code</th>
</tr>
</thead>
<tbody>
<tr>
<td></td>
<td></td>
<td></td>
<td></td>
</tr>
</tbody>
</table>

**FOM PREPARED BY**

Survey and Planning Unit Staff, John B. Wells, III, Supervisor

State Department of Archives and History

109 East Jones Street

**STATE LIENSON OFFICER CERTIFICATION**

As the designated State Liaison Officer for the National Historic Preservation Act of 1966 (Public Law 89-965), I hereby nominate this property for inclusion in the National Register and certify that it has been evaluated according to the criteria and procedures set forth by the National Park Service. The recommended level of significance of this nomination is:

- National [ ] State [x] Local [ ]

Name: H. G. Jones
Title: Director, State Department of Archives and History
Date: April 9, 1971

I hereby certify that this property is included in the National Register.

Chief, Office of Archeology and Historic Preservation

(Date)

ATTTEST:

Keeper of The National Register
(Date)


Union County Records, Union County Courthouse, Monroe, North Carolina. Office of the Register of Deeds. (Subgroup: Court Records).

Union County Records, State Department of Archives and History, Raleigh, North Carolina. (Subgroup: Court Records).